
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT 

PFIZER INC., 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

REGOR THERAPEUTICS INC., QILU 
REGOR THERAPEUTICS INC., XIAYANG 
QIU, MIN ZHONG, and DOES 1-10, 

Defendants. 

: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 

Civil Action No. ______________ 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff PFIZER INC. (“Pfizer”), through its undersigned attorneys, Davis Polk & 

Wardwell LLP and Wiggin and Dana LLP, as and for its Complaint against Defendants REGOR 

THERAPEUTICS INC., QILU REGOR THERAPEUTICS INC., XIAYANG QIU, MIN 

ZHONG, and DOES 1-10 (collectively, “Defendants”), respectfully alleges, upon knowledge and 

upon information and belief, as follows: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. Pfizer’s guiding principle is the pursuit of breakthroughs that change patients’ lives.  

Pfizer runs dozens of programs, from preclinical research and development through clinical trials 

to manufacturing and delivery of innovative, life-changing medicines.  Some of these programs 

succeed while others do not; cutting-edge science requires significant trial and error, and 

sometimes programs can last many years before yielding a scientifically and commercially viable 

solution.  But as Pfizer-BioNTech’s COVID-19 vaccine demonstrated, those solutions that are 

viable contribute to a better, healthier world for all. 

2. One of Pfizer’s programs focuses on addressing two major American public-health 

crises:  Type 2 diabetes and obesity.  Tens of millions of Americans suffer from Type 2 diabetes, 

and tens of millions more Americans are considered “pre-diabetic” due to their increased risk of  
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developing Type 2 diabetes.  And more than one-third of adults in the United States are obese, yet 

only a handful of obesity treatments have won FDA approval, with highly invasive bariatric 

surgery considered the most effective.  Since 2002, Pfizer has devoted thousands of hours of its 

scientists’ and clinicians’ time and hundreds of millions of dollars in research to develop a 

revolutionary new diabetes-and-obesity treatment.  These efforts have included screening 

thousands of possible compounds before identifying a narrower set of promising novel clinical 

candidates, and ultimately proceeding to FDA clinical trials with two of them. 

3. Defendants Min Zhong and Xiayang Qiu, based on years of working at Pfizer, saw 

the promise of Pfizer’s diabetes-and-obesity treatment in development.  Instead of carrying out 

their ethical and contractual responsibilities as Pfizer employees, they decided to steal the hard 

work of Pfizer’s scientists and clinicians for their own profit and gain.  While still employed at 

Pfizer, Zhong and Qiu set up Defendant Regor Therapeutics (“Regor”) on the side, met with 

international financial backers to fund Regor, and co-opted Pfizer’s investment and hard work, all 

to benefit themselves, Regor, and a second company they founded, Defendant QILU Regor 

Therapeutics (“QILU Regor”).  The Pfizer trade secrets and confidential information that Qiu and 

Zhong stole essentially gave Defendants the playbook and the critical underlying science and data 

to develop their own supposed diabetes-and-obesity treatment, an unlawful head start that saved 

Defendants significant money and years of development time. 

4. As part of their intentional scheme, Defendants stole key Pfizer trade secrets and 

confidential information for weeks before they gave notice of their intent to leave Pfizer, taking 

advantage of their privileged position as Pfizer employees to do so.  As just one example, 

Defendants purported to create a new presentation about a revolutionary new diabetes-and-obesity 

drug, but populated it with content copied directly from several confidential Pfizer documents that 
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reflected key development and planning aspects of Pfizer’s revolutionary GLP-1 program.  

Defendants specifically stripped their “new” presentation of Pfizer confidentiality designations so 

as to avoid detection and uploaded it to a personal cloud-storage account for no apparent business 

reason just two months before their departure. 

5. Equally telling of their scheme is the fact that, within just a handful of months of 

founding Regor and QILU Regor, Defendants applied for patent protection as to a treatment 

strikingly similar to Pfizer’s diabetes-and-obesity treatment.  Without the critical head start Zhong 

and Qiu’s theft provided, Defendants could not have “developed” their own purported treatment 

in such a short amount of time. 

6. Pfizer discovered Defendants Zhong and Qiu’s theft from a forensic analysis of 

their Pfizer accounts and devices—or at least those accounts and devices to which Pfizer has 

access.  Unbeknownst to Pfizer at the time of Zhong’s departure, he turned in an iPhone that was 

not his own, and Zhong’s Pfizer-issued iPhone has not been recovered.  Pfizer conducted its 

analysis after it first suspected Defendants’ treachery upon publication of Regor’s patent 

application that claimed the fruits of Pfizer’s years-long research.  What is more, Defendants have 

now enticed Eli Lilly and Company (“Eli Lilly”) to invest up to $1.5 billion dollars in their business 

founded on the Pfizer trade secrets and confidential information they stole. 

7. Pfizer thus brings this action against Defendants for misappropriation of trade 

secrets in violation of the Defend Trade Secrets Act of 2016 (“DTSA”), 18 U.S.C. § 1836, et seq. 

and the Connecticut Uniform Trade Secrets Act (“CUTSA”), Conn. Gen. Stat. § 35-50, et seq.; 

unfair trade practices in violation of the Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices Act (“CUTPA”), 

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 42-110a, et seq.; breach of fiduciary duty and breach of the duty of loyalty, 

under Connecticut law; and breach of contract under New York law. 
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PARTIES 

8. Plaintiff Pfizer Inc. is a Delaware corporation, with its principal place of business 

at 235 East 42nd Street, New York, New York 10017.  Zhong and Qiu worked immediately before 

their departures from the company at Pfizer’s Groton, Connecticut facility. 

9. Defendant Regor Therapeutics Inc. (“Regor”) is a Delaware corporation, with its 

principal place of business at 245 Main Street, Second Floor, Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142.  

Zhong and Qiu cofounded Regor while they were still employed by Pfizer.  Regor has filed at least 

one patent application for pharmaceutical products relying on stolen Pfizer trade secrets. 

10. Defendant QILU Regor Therapeutics Inc. (“QILU Regor”) is incorporated in the 

People’s Republic of China, with its principal place of business at 1206 Zhangjiang Road, Building 

C, Pu Dong New District, Shanghai 201210, China.  QILU Regor is a start-up entity that 

Defendants created with capital provided by drug manufacturers Qilu Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. and 

Shandong Qilu Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (collectively, “Qilu”).  Zhong and Qiu cofounded 

QILU Regor while they were still employed by Pfizer or shortly thereafter.  On information and 

belief, Defendants Regor, Zhong, and Qiu control QILU Regor and use it as another vehicle to 

develop pharmaceutical products and pursue patent applications relying on stolen Pfizer trade 

secrets and confidential information. 

11. Defendant Xiayang Qiu is a Connecticut citizen who owns a home in Connecticut.   

12. Defendant Min Zhong is a Connecticut citizen who owns a home in Connecticut.  

13. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate or 

otherwise, of DOES 1 through 10 are unknown to Pfizer at this time, and therefore are sued by 

Pfizer using the pseudonyms DOES 1 through 10.  On information and belief, DOES 1 through 10 

are individuals or corporations who acted or are acting in concert with Defendants in connection 

with the misappropriation of Pfizer’s trade secrets and confidential information and/or knowingly 
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and intentionally have acquired, disclosed, and/or used Pfizer’s trade secrets and confidential 

information.  Pfizer will amend this Complaint to state the true names and capacities of DOES 1 

through 10 once they have been ascertained. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

14. This action arises under the DTSA, 18 U.S.C. § 1836, et seq., as well as under 

Connecticut and New York law.  The Court has subject-matter jurisdiction over Pfizer’s federal 

cause of action (Count 1) pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and 18 U.S.C. § 1836(c).  The Court has 

supplemental jurisdiction over the remaining causes of action (Counts 2-4) pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§ 1367. 

15. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because Zhong and Qiu are 

residents of the State of Connecticut, were employed by Pfizer at its Groton, Connecticut facility 

in this District, cofounded Defendants Regor and QILU Regor while residents of this District, and 

committed the misappropriation and other tortious acts alleged herein within this District while 

acting on behalf of themselves and the other Defendants.  A significant purpose of Zhong and 

Qiu’s creation of Defendants Regor and QILU Regor was to make use of the trade secrets and 

other confidential information they were misappropriating from Pfizer in this District. 

16. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2), because a 

substantial part of the events giving rise to this action occurred in this District at Pfizer’s facility 

in Groton, Connecticut, which is where Zhong and Qiu regularly transacted business and 

misappropriated information and documents at the heart of this Complaint. 
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